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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

V.12

%
NORTH COAST MEDICAL, INC., a (4

California corporation,

Plaint ff,

v,

DANMIC GLOBAL, LLC;

a California limited liability company; Jorgen
M ichael Jensen, an individual; CHRISTY
MANUFACTURING CORPORATION,
LLC, a California corporation; Geor

Michael Christy, and individual, and DOES
1 through 50, inclusive,

Defendants.

LRk
1248

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF AND DAMAGES

1. FEDERAL TRADE DRESS
INFRINGEMENT

2. FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN
3. COMMON LAW TRADE DRESS
INFRINGEMENT

4, CALIFORNIA STATUTORY UNFAIR
COMPETITION § 17200, ef seq.

5. CALIFORNIA STATUTORY UNFAIR
COMPETITION § 17500, ef seq.

6. COMMON LAW UNFAIR
COMPETITION

7. TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH
CONTRACT

8. TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH
PROSPECTIVE ECONOMIC
ADVANTAGE

9. BREACH OF WRITTEN PUTTY
AGREEMENT

10. BREACH OF WRITTEN TOUCH
TEST SENSOR AGREEMENT

11. BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

[Jury Trial Demanded]|

NORTH COAST MEDICAL'S
COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES
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Plaintiff North Coast Medical, Inc. (Plaintiff or North Coast) alleges as follows:

JURISDICTION

1. This Court has original jurisdiction of the subject matter of this action
under 28 U.S.C. sections 1331 and 1338 for trademark, false designation and false description or

representation in violation of 15 U.S.C. sections 1114 and 1125(a).

2. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims under

28 U.S.C. sections 1338(b) and 1367.

VENUE

3. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1391 (b) and

(c) because, upon information and belief, Defendants do business in and have substantial contacts
with the Northern District of California, expected or should reasonably have expected their acts
to have consequences within this judicial district, and a substantial portion of the events at issue

have arisen and will arise in this judicial district.
PRELIMINARY ALLEGATIONS
4. Plaintiff North Coast is a California corporation with its principal place of
business in Gilroy, California, and has been in the business of producing and selling medical

devices since 1974.

i
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5. Defendant Christy Manufacturing Corporation (CMC) is a California

corporation with its principal place of business in Atherton, California, and has been in the

business of producing medical devices since 1998,

6. Defendant George M ichael Christy (Christy) is an individual residing in

Lincoln, California.

7. Defendant Danmic Global, LLC (DanMic) is a California limited liability
company with its principal place of business in Campbell, California, and has been in the

business of selling medical devices since 2009.

8. Defendant Jorgen M ichael Jensen (Jensen) is an individual residing in

Campbell, California, and the M anaging Member of DanM ic.

9. The names and identities of Defendants Does 1 through 50 are unknown to
North Coast, who sues these Defendants by such fictitious names. North Coast is informed and
believes and thereon alleges that Does 1 through 50 were responsible in some manner for the
events alleged herein, were co-conspirators with, or aiders and abettors of, CMC, Christy,

DanM ic and Jensen (collectively, Defendants).

NORTH COAST MEDICAL

10. Since 1974, North Coast has been in the business of worldwide product

supply to the rehabilitation industry as a manufacturer, direct importer and whole distributor of

medical products used in rehabilitation of patients with injuries or disabilities.

-2
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11. One product that North Coast distributes is therapeutic and exercise putty

under the brand names Thera -Putty and Rainbow Putty (collectively Putty). Putty is used to

enable patients with hand injuries or disabilities to regain strength and use of their limbs through

repeatedly squeezing the putty into various shapes.

12. North Coast owns a protect able trade dress used with its Putty consisting

of consistent color coded density gradations that are inherently distinctive to allow for easy

designation of specific resistance levels (collective, Trade Dress):

».Weak clients or those who have pain use super-soft white Putty;
* As the client progresses, she uses extra-soft light blue Putty, and
then sofi turquoise Putty for added resistance;

* Medium-soft light green, medium dark blue and medium firm teal
Putties are used for a variety of exercises requiring medium-grade
resistance;

* Firm dark green Putty is used for strong clients at the end of a
strengthening program;

* Extra-firm gray Putty is designed for athletes or workers who

have maximum strength requirements.

13.  Another key North Coast product is its Semmes Weinstein

M onofilaments under the brand name Touch Test Sensory Evaluator (Touch Test Sensor). The

Touch Test is used to test sensory levels and obtain objective data for accurate reporting on the

status of diminishing or returning sensibility.

i
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PUTTY DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPLY AGREEMENT WITH CHRISTY

14, OnMay 1, 1990, North Coast and Christy (CMC’s predecessor) entered
into a Putty Development and Supply Agreement (Putty Agreement). A true and correct copy
of the Putty Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

15.  Paragraph 4.1 of the Putty Agreement provides that North Coast:

[s]hall own all right, title and interest to the trade secrets, know

how, process design, specifications, formulae, and documentation

related to hand therapy putty developed pursuant to this Agreement,

whether developed before, during or after the Development Period.

16.  In September 2008, North Coast exercised its rights under Paragraph 4.1
by requesting all formulae for putties developed by CMC, the names and addresses of all vendors
of materials and/or services used by CMC in production of the putties and an introduction to the

Putty vendors, but CMC refused.

17.  Paragraph 4.1 of the Putty Agreement further provides that Christy and
CMC’s predecessor will provide all formulae for Putty as well as vendor information and

contacts:

Christy and/or Christy Putty Company shall provide North Coast
with all formulae for putties developed by Christy or its affiliates and

shall supply North Coast with the names and addresses of all vendors

or materials and/or services used by Christy and/or Christy Putty

Company in production of the putties. At North Coast’s request,

-4-
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? | Christy and/or Christy Putty Company shall introduce a North Coast
g 2 representative to such vendors.
; 4 18.  In September 2008, North Coast exercised its rights under Paragraph 4.1 of
E 5 || the Putty Agreement by requesting all formulae for Putties developed by CMC, the names and
? 6 || addresses of all vendors of materials and/or services used by CMC in production of the Putties,
7 {| and an introduction to the Putty vendors, but CM C refused and continues to refuse to provide
8 || this information.
9
10 TOUCH TEST SENSOR EXCLUS IVE MANUFACTURE AND SUPPLY AGREEMENT
11
% 12 19. On March 17, 1997 North Coast and Defendant Christy entered into a
L 13 | written agreement for the joint development, exclusive manufacture and supply of the Touch
; g o § 14 || Test device (the Touch Test Sensor Agreement). A true and correct copy of the Touch Test
§ 0 : 15 || Sensor Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit B.
g
: * 17 20.  Inparagraph one of the Touch Test Sensor Agreement it states, in relevant
r 18 | part:
19
j 20 North Coast Medical, Inc. (NCM) transferred proprietary
* 21 manufacturing information, materials and supplier contacts to
22 Christy Company in exchange for Christy Company becoming
23 NCM s sole manufacturer of the North Coast™ Semmes
’ 24 Weinstein Monofilaments. In addition, a joint development project
; 25 between NCM and the Christy company to design a new
26 retractable version for the North Coast Monofilaments was
27 initiated and eventually completed. It was understood that in
28
-
;
NORTH COAST MEDICAL’S
s COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES
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>

| exchange for NCM ’s participation in this Jjoint development
2 project NCM would continue to be the exclusive worldwide
3 distributor of the new M onofilaments des ign. As well, it was
4 understood that Christy Company would continue to be NCM ’s
5 exclusive manufacturer for the M onofilaments.
: 6
7 21, The Touch Test Sensor Agreement has been in effect since 1997.
; 8
9 NORTH COAST’S EMPLOYMENT OF DEFENDANT MICHAEL JENS EN
10
: 11 22, From 1995 until F ebruary 10, 2009, Defendant Jensen was employed by
12 [ North Coast in a fiduciary capacity, lastly as International Director of Sales. During his
: L 13 || employment with North Coast, Jensen acquired confidential commercial and trade secret
g ; E 14 I information of North Coast including but not limited to the identities and requirements of North
§ gf 15 | Coast’s customers and the specifications and marketing strategies for North Coast’s products
% éé 16 I including the Putty and certain touch test sensory evaluation products.
BT
18 23.  Jensen expressly acknowledged his responsibility to follow North Coast’s
19 || procedures for maintaining the confidentiality of North Coast’s proprietary information as set
20 | forth in North Coast’s Employee Handbook.
21
22 DEFENDANTS’ UNFAIR COMPETITION
23
24 24, Onor about March 31, 2009, scon after his departure from North Coast,
25 | North Coast discovered that Jensen had formed a competing business, DanM ic, a website,
26 || www danmicglobal.com for that business, and was selling both the Touch Test Sensor and Putty
27
28
-6-
NORTH COAST MEDICAL’S
COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES




——W

Caseb:12-cv-01246-LHK Documentl Filed03/13/12 Page8 of 44

I | manufactured by Christy and CM C using North Coast’s Trade Dress and trade secrets,
2 [ knowhow, process design, specifications, and formulae for Putty,
3
4 25, Defendants CMC’s and Christy s sales of Putty and the Touch Test
5 |l Sensor to Jensen and DanMic violate the Putty Agreement and the Touch Test Sensor
6 || Agreement, Jensen’s fiduciary obligations, and state and federal unfair competition laws. Within
z 7 || the past two months, North Coast has learned of significant market confusion caused by
8 || Defendants’ unauthorized sale of North Coast’s products in the United States and abroad, and is
9 || informed and believes that Defendants have tortiously interfered with North Coast’s existing and
10 } prospective contractual relationships.
11
12 FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
.z 13 FEDERAL TRADE DRESS INFRINGEMENT
Bh 14 (Against All Defendants)
; § g_f 16 26.  Paragraphs 1-25 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
j o 17 [ entirety here.
18
19 27. Pursuant to 15 U.8.C. section 1 125(a), North Coast owns the exclusive
20 || nationwide right to use its inherently distinctive, multi-colored Trade Dress and has used it to
21 [l identify its Putty products in the marketplace for decades.
22
23 28.  Defendants’ unauthorized sale and distribution of Putty using North
24 || Coast’s distinctive Trade Dress violates 15 U.S.C. section 1114. Defendants have used, and are
25 || currently using, identical Putty products and Trade Dress in connection with the sale, offering for
26 || sale, distribution, or advertising of Defendants’ goods.
27
28
-7-
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)

29.  Defendants’ unauthorized use of the North Coast Trade Dress in
connection with its goods has a tendency to deceive or confuse customers into believing that
Defendants’ Putty is affiliated with North Coast, are sponsored or approved by North Coast, or
are otherwise associated with or authorized by North Coast, in violation of 15 U.S.C. §

1125(a)(1)(A).

30. Defendants’ use of North Coast’s Trade Dress has caused, and is likely

further to cause confusion, mistake, or deception in the domestic and international markets for

therapeutic hand putty.

31.  Such use has been undertaken by Defendants with knowiedge that such

imitation is intended to, and will cause confusion, mistake, or deception as to the origin and

composition of Defendants’ therapeutic hand putty.

32. North Coast and Defendants offer identical goods through the same

channels of trade directed to the same consumers for the same purposes.

33, Defendants’ unauthorized use of North Coast’s Trade Dress constitutes
infringement under the Lanham Act. Defendants’ use of the Trade Dress constitutes a
misappropriation of North Coast’s goodwill in the Trade Dress, wherein Defendants are
knowingly using the goodwill established in the Trade Dress to sell Defendants’ competing

goods.

34.  North Coast has no control over the nature and quality of the goods
offered by Defendants, North Coast’s reputation and goodwill has and will be damaged, and the
value of its Trade Dress is and will be Jjeopardized by Defendants’ continued use of the Trade

Dress in connection with the sale of Defendants’ therapeutic Putty.

-8-
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/

35.  Defendants’ acts of infringement have caused and are causing great and
irreparable injury to North Coast and to the Trade Dress and goodwill represented thereby, in an
amount that cannot be ascertained at this time, Unless this infringement is restrained,

Defendants’ use will cause further irreparable injury leaving North Coast with no adequate

remedy at law,

36. By reason of the foregoing, North Coast is entitled to injunctive relief

\DOO‘-JO\(.II-&.DJN

against Defendants, restraining further acts of unfair competition and misappropriation of North
10 | Coast’s Trade Dress to Defendants’ profits and to North Coast’s damage. North Coast is also

I1 || entitled to recover its costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in this action.

: 12
.: 13 SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
: g ‘ 14 UNFAIR COMPETITION AND FALSE DES IGNATION OF ORIGIN
f 15 (Against All Defendants)
of 17 37.  Paragraphs 1-36 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their

18 || entirety here.
19
20 38. Defendants’ unauthorized use of the North Coast’s Trade Dress in

21 (| connection with the manufacture, sale and distribution of its therapeutic Putty (in addition to its
22 | sale of the North Coast Touch Test Sensor) will deceive and confuse customers into believing
23 [l that Defendants’ Putty and other products are affiliated with North Coast, are sponsored or

24 | approved by North Coast, or are otherwise associated with or authorized by North Coast, in

25 | violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1)(A).

26
27

28
-9.
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3 1 39.  Defendants’ acts of unfair competition have caused and are causing great
2 I and irreparable injury to North Coast and to the goodwill associated with the Putty and its other
3 | products, in an amount that cannot be ascertained at this time and, unless restrained, will cause
4 I further irreparable injury, leaving North Coast with no adequate remedy at law.
5
6 40. By the reason of the foregoing, North Coast is entitled to injunctive relief
; 7 |l against Defendants, restraining them from further acts of unfair competition and false designation
8 [l of origin, and to recover attorney s’ fees and damages.
10 THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
1 COMMON LAW TRADE DRESS INFRINGEMENT
| 12 (Against All Defendants)
13
14 41.  Paragraphs 1 - 40 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their

15 || entirety here.

16
17 42.  Asdescribed above, North Coast's Trade Dress has been extensively used,

COMMINS B KNUDSEN
FPROFESSIGNALCORFORATION
ATTORNEYS ATLAW

18 || advertised, and promoted throughout the United States and around the world for many years in
19 | connection with North Coast’s products.

20

21 43.  Asaresult of the use, advertisement, and promotion of its Trade Dress,
22 I North Coast’s Trade Dress has become well and favorably known throughout the United States
23 | as identifying North Coast and its products. North Coast has developed valuable goodwill in
24 || North Coast’s common law Trade Dress.

25
26
27

28
-10-
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44, Upon information and belief, Defendants have advertised, promoted,

2 || displayed, offered for sale, and sold therapeutic Putty products bearing the identical Trade Dress.
5 45.  Defendants have infringed North Coast’s common law Trade Dress by
6 || their acts as alleged above. Said use of the common law Trade Dress is without permission or
7 || authority of North Coast and said use by Defendants is causing, and is likely to cause, confusion,
§ 8 I mistake, and deception regarding the origin of the therapeutic Putty sold by Defendants.
9
10 46. Defendant’s use of North Coast’s common law Trade Dress is likely to

[a—
—

cause members of the relevant public and trade to believe that the products sold by Defendants

12 | bearing the infringing Trade Dress are provided by or in affiliation with or under the sponsorship
s 13 || or approval of North Coast when used in connection with the therapeutic Putty sold by
f % E§ 14 || Defendants,
% éf 16 47.  Upon information and belief, Defendants’ acts of trademark infringement
°d 17 || and unfair competition have been committed with intent to cause confusion, mistake, and to
18 || deceive,
19
20 48. North Coast has been damaged in an amount to be proven at trial, and
21 || North Coast is entitled to an accounting of Defendants’ profits as well as enhanced remedies as
22 I provided by law for Defendants’ willful misconduct.
23
24 49.  Upon information and belief, unless restrained by this Court, Defendants
25 || will continue to infringe North Coast’s common law Trade Dress by their use of the infringing
26 || Trade Dress.
27
28

-11 -
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1 50. By engaging in the conduct as alleged here, Defendants have acted
2 || willfully, maliciously, oppressively and fraudulently in violation of California Civil Code section
3 [ 3294, and North Coast is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount according to proof.
: 5 FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
6 UNFAIR COMPETITION
7 California Bus. and Prof, Code § 17200, et seq.
8 (Against All Defendants)
9
, 10 51.  Paragraphs 1 - 50 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
11 | entirety here.
12
L 13 52.  Defendants’ activities complained of herein constitute unfair, deceptive
g § f 14 | and unlawful practices in violation of California Business and Professions Code section 17200, et
: § gf I5 | seq. to the injury of North Coast and the pubilic.
g2
) 17 53. The conduct of Defendant as alleged here will, unless restrained, damage
18 I North Coast in an amount to be determined at trial, and will cause irreparable harm including
19 |l serious impairment of the value of the Trade Dress. North Coast is entitled to receive from
20 || Defendant any money it has received or acquired as a result of its unfair competition.
21
22 54, North Coast has been damaged in an amount to be proven at trial, and
23 || North Coast is entitled to an accounting of Defendants’ profits as weil as enhanced remedies as
24 || provided by law for Defendants’ willful misconduct.
25
26 ||
27
28
-12-
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1 FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FALSE ADVERTISING

California Bus. and Prof. Code § 17500 et seq.
(Against All Defendants)

55.  Paragraphs 1 - 54 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
entirety here.

56.  Defendants have intentionally sold Touch Test Sensors and therapeutic

\DOQ"-JO\LII-I}U)N

Putty substantially similar in appearance and composition to that sold by North Coast, and have

J 10 ) marketed their Putty to make it appear as if North Coast’s Putty were being sold.
6 B

12 37.  Said marketing was false in that the products sold by Defendants were not

13 || manufactured for, or sold by, North Coast.

i
3
;
¥
;

8:: 14

3 § Ef 15 58. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have committed false advertising in
; § zg 16 |f violation of California Business & Professions Code section 17500, et seq.
? ) 17

18 SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

19 COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION

20 (Aginst All Defendants)

21

22 59. Paragraphs 1 - 58 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their

23 || entirety here.
24
25 60.  Defendants’ activities complained of here constitute unfair and unlaw ful
26 | practices in violation of the common law of the State of California to the injury of North Coast
27 |l and the public.

28
-13-
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2 l 61. The conduct of Defendant as alleged here will, unless restrained, damage
2 I North Coast in an amount to be determined at trial and will cause irreparable harm, including
; 3 (| serious impairment of the value of the Trade Dress,
4
4
5 62. North Coast has been damaged in an amount to be proven at trial, and
6 || North Coast is entitled to an accounting of Defendants’ profits as well as enhanced remedies as
f 7 || provided by law for Defendants’ willful conduct.
: 8 63. By engaging in the conduct as alleged here, Defendants have acted
9 || willfully, maliciously, oppressively and fraudulently in violation of California Civil Code section
10 [l 3294, and North Coast is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount according to proof.
y
: 12 SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
. 13 TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH CONTRACTS
*‘ g 53 14 (Against Defendants Jensen, DanM ic)
e
% D 16 64.  Paragraphs 1 - 63 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
8 17 || entirety here.
18
19 65. Jensen and DanM ic were aware of the existing contractual relatjonship
20 || between North Coast and CMC for (1) the manufacture of therapeutic Putty and North Coast’s
21 | existing ownership rights under the Putty Agreement for the resistance combinations,
22 || specifications, formulae, and color combinations associated with North Coast’s Putty; and (2)
23 || the Touch Test Sensor Agreement.
24
25 66.  From and after February 2009, Jensen and DanM ic intentionally induced
26 | CMC to breach the Putty Agreement and the Touch Test Sensor Agreement by having Christy
27
28
-14 -
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1
I' || and CM C manufacture and sell to Jensen and DanM ic Touch Test Sensors and therapeutic Putty
2 |f using North Coast’s intellectual property rights under the Agreements,
4 67. Using North Coast products produced by Christy and CMC, Jensen and
5 | DanM ic induced North Coast’s customers to purchase these products from Jensen and DanMic
6 || instead of North Coast, causing North Coast lost sales and damages through lost profits,
8 68. By engaging in the conduct as alleged here, Defendants have acted
9 [ willfully, maliciously, oppressively and fraudulently in violation of California Civil Code section
10 |f 3294, and North Coast is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount according to proof.
} 12 EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
s 13 TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH PROSPECTIVE
8 14 ECONOMIC ADVANTAGE
i § Ei 15 (Against all Defendants)
CE:
il 17 69.  Paragraphs 1 - 68 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
18 | entirety here.
19
20 70.  North Coast has had long term economic relationships with dozens of
21 J| customers with the probability that those customers would continue to purchase North Coast
22 | products, including Putty and the Touch Test Sensor.
23
24 71. Defendants were each aware of these relationships between North Coast
25 |l and its customers.
26
27
28
-15-
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’
1 72. Defendants conduct, as alleged herein, was intentionally designed to
2 | disrupt North Coast’s relationships with its customers.
3
4 73.  Defendants’ conduct has actually caused disruption of North Coast’s
5 [l relationships with its customers.
6
7 74.  The actions of Defendants has caused North Coast lost sales and damages
8 | through lost profits.
9
10 75. By engaging in the conduct as alleged here, Defendants have acted
H | willfully, maliciously, oppressively and fraudulently in violation of California Civil Code section
12 || 3294, and North Coast is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount according to proof,
z 8 13
i 1 NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
\_ 25 s BREACH OF WRITTEN PUTTY AGREEMENT
; g %: 16 (Against CMC and Christy)
o
18 76.  Paragraphs | - 75 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
19 | entirety here.
20
21 77. Under paragraph 4.1 of the Putty Agreement, North Coast owns “all right,
22 | title and interest to the trade secrets, know-how, process, design, specifications, formulae and
23 || documentation” related to the Putty,
24
25 78.  North Coast’s “trade secrets, know-how, process, design, specifications,
26 | formulae” for therapeutic hand putty includes the resistance combinations, specifications,
27 || formulae and color combinations associated with its hand therapy putty,
28
-16 -
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I 79. Notwithstanding North Coast’s rights, CM C and Christy have, within
2 | four years preceding the filing of this action, manufactured and sold to persons and entities other
' % 3 || than North Coast, therapeutic hand putty that includes the resistance combinations,
: 4 || specifications, formulae, and color combinations associated with North Coast’s Putty in breach
5 )| of the Putty Agreement.
6
7 80.  CMC’s and Christy’s actions have caused North Coast to lose sales of the
8 || Putty and damaged its reputation, all to North Coast’s damage.
9
10
11 TENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
12 BRFACH OF WRITTEN TOUCH TEST SENSOR AGREEMENT
.z 13 (Against CMC and Christy)
£ 14
g fg% 15 81.  Paragraphs 1 - 80 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
} % éf 16 || entirety here.
: 17
: 18 82.  Under paragraph 1 of the Touch Test Sensor Agreement, North Coast is
19 || the exclusive woridwide distributor of Touch Test Sensors manufactured by CMC and Christy.
20
21 83.  North Coast has fully performed its obligations under the Touch Test
22 || Sensor Agreement.
23
24 84.  Notwithstanding North Coast’s exclusive rights, CMC and Christy have,
25 |} within four years preceding the filing of this action, manufactured and sold to persons and
26 || entities other than North Coast, Touch Test Sensors in breach of the Touch Test Sensor
27 || Agreement.
28
-17-
NORTH COAST MEDICAL'S
COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES
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2 85.  CMC’sand Christy’s actions have caused North Coast to lose sales of the

3 || Touch Test Sensor and damaged its reputation, all to North Coast’s damage,

4

5 ELEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

6 BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

7 (Agninst Defendant J ensen)

8

9 86.  Paragraphs 1 - 85 are incorporated by reference as though set forth in their
10 || entirety here,

-
—

: 12 87. As asenior employee of North Coast, Jensen had a fiduciary duty not to
s I3 I use North Coast’s confidential commercial and trade secret information to compete with North
‘ g ;* 14 | Coast after the termination of his employment, and not to use the goodwill developed on behalf
i ; 15 | of North Coast during the course of, and as a direct consequence of, his employment with North
’ § §§ 16 {| Coast.
T

18 88. In breach of that duty, Jensen, on behalf of himself and on behalf of

19 || DanMic, used North Coast’s confidential and trade secret information regarding the identities,

20 |f needs and specifications of North Coast’s customers, and North Coast’s good will, to solicit

21 || North Coast’s customers after termination of Jensen’s emp loyment with North Coast.

22

23 89. By reason of his use of North Coast’s confidential and trade secret

24 | information, Jensen was able to secure sales for DanM ic and himself that otherwise would have

25 || gone to North Coast.

26

27

28

-18 -

NORTH COAST MEDICAL'S
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90. By reason of this tortious conduct, North Coast was damaged by the

2 | profits lost when customers purchased products from Jensen and/or DanM ic rather than from
3 | North Coast,
4
5 91. By engaging in the conduct as alleged here, Jensen has acted willfully,
6 | maliciously, op pressively and fraudulently in violation of California Civil Code section 3294, and
7 || North Coast is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount according to proof.
8
9 PRAYER FOR RELIEF
; 10
11 THEREFORE, North Coast prays as follows;
12
; Lz 13 1. That Defendants, their officers, directors, managers, members, agents,
“g E’E 14 |f employees, licensors, licensees, affiliates, any parent and subsidiary corporations, attorneys and
% E §§ 15 || representatives and all those in privity or acting under their direction or pursuant to their control,
§ %E 16 || be enjoined and restrained, preliminarily and permanently from directly and indirectly:
o
18 a, Manufacturing, producing, sourcing, importing, selling,
19 oftering for sale, distributing, advertising, or promoting any putty
20 that bears the same Trade Dress or any Trade Dress or
21 designations that so resemble North Coast’s Trade Dress as to be
22 likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deception in connection with
23 products that have not been approved or sponsored by or
24 originated from North Coast;
25
26 b. Usingany Trade Dress symbol, design, designation or other
27 device that is likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deception as to
28

-19.
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1 an affiliation or association of Defendants or their goods with
2 North Coast;
3
4 c. Further infringing the rights of North Coast in North
5 Coast’s Trade Dress or otherwise damaging North Coast’s
6 goodwill or business reputation;
7
8 d. Otherwise competing unfairly with North Coast in any
9 manner; and
10 €. Continuing to perform in any manner whatsoever any of
11 the other acts complained of in this Comp laint.
12
z 13 2. That Defendants and their officers, directors, managers, members, agents,

14 | employees, licensors, licensees and all those acting under their direction and pursuant to their

15 | control, be ordered to deliver to North Coast for destruction all labels, signs, advertising,

ATTORNEYS ATLAW

16 || promotional and other materials bearing or containing confusingly similar Putty or Trade Dress,

COMMINS & KNUDSEN
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

17 |l and remove all references to the Putty and North Coast’s Trade Dress from Defendants’® website
18 || and other electronic media.

19
20 3, That North Coast recover from Defendants damages in an amount to be
21 | proven at trial, and that Defendants be required to account to North Coast for any profits that
22 || are attributable to their illegal acts.

23
24 4, That Defendants pay a sum equal to three times Defendants’ profits and
25 || North Coast’s damages, or such amount as the Court may in its discretion deem reasonable and
26 || just pursuant to 15 U.S.C. section 1125.

27

28
-20-
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o

5. That Defendants pay punitive damages under California Civil Code section
3294,

6. That North Coast be awarded its costs, disbursements and reasonable attorneys’

fees incurred in connection with this action.

7. That the Court grant such other and further relief as it deems just and proper.

DATED: March 12, 2012. COMMINS & KNUDSEN

North Coast M edical

-21-

NORTH COAST MEDICAL’S
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l DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff demands a jury trial for all claims as provided for in Rule 38 of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

FROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS ATLAW
—
h

COMMINS & KNUDSEN

=22

NORTH COAST MEDICAL’S
COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES
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EXHIBIT A
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PUTTY DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPLY AGREEMENT

This Putty Development and Supply Agreement
{YAgreement®) is entered into on Has [/ . 1990, by
and betwesen North Coast Medical, Inc.! a California
corporation lecated at 187 Stauffer Boulevard, San Jose,
California ("North Coast"}, and The Christy Company, a
sole proprietorship located at 2108 Raven Road, Pleasanton,
California (¥Christy").

1. RECITALS

1.1 Horth Coast —~ North Coast is a distributor of
cocupational and physical therapy products, including hand
therapy putty. North Coast currently purchases five types
of hand therapy putty of varicus consistencies, ranging
from soft to extra-firm. North Ceast purchases soft ({light
blue) putty, medium (blue) putty and firm (green) putty
from Speort Health for $7.50 per pound ("Sport Health
Price®;. Horth Ccast also purchases medium~-soft (light
green} putty and extra~firm {gray) putty from Depco for
$6.95 per pound ("Depco Price').

1.2 Christy - Christy has invested its time and money
and meney advanced by North Coast in an effort to study
nand therapy putties currently purchased by North Coast.
Christy believes it can develop hand therapy putties of the
same o7 better guality than those currently purchased by
North Coast at a cost substantially less than the prices
currently paid by North Coast.

1.3 Intent of Parties -~ North Coast and Christy
desire to enter into an agreement whereby Christy will
develop low priced, high quality putties of the kxind, color
and guality currently purchased by North Ceast as well as
putties having different resistances as specified by North
Cozst. Christy will establish an entity ("Christy Putty
Company™) wnich will supply North Coast with such putties,
ag needed by North Coast, in an amount egual to one hundred
fifty thousand (150,000) pounds. North Coast will purchase
putties from Christy Putty Company at a price equal to
Christy's direct cousts of producing such putties plus one-
third (1/3) of the monies North Coast saves by purchasing
putties from Christy.

2. TEEM

The term of this Agreement {("Term") shall be until
Yeorth Coast purchases one hundred fifty thousand (150,000)
pounds of putty from Christy Putty Company, excluding
experimental batches purchased from Christy between April
1, 1990, and December 31, 1990 ("DRevelopment Period").

<o
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3. OELICATIONS DURING DEVELOPMENT PERICOD

3.1 Development - During the Development Period,
Thristy shall use its best efforte to develop:

{a) acceptable guality putty with 2 soft, medium or
firm consistency of the kind and coler currently purchased
by North Coast from Sport Health for the Sport Health Price
{"oroup A Putty®);

(b} acceptable guality putty with a medium-soft or
extra-firm consistency of the kind and color currently
purchased by North Ceast from Depco for the Depco Price
{Horoun B Putty®): and

(¢} accepiable quality putty with a different
consistency from Sroup A Putty or Group B Putty, as
specified by Worth Ccast, in a color as specified by North
Coast (“"New Putty"}.

For purpoeses of this Agreement, "acceptable guality® means
the guality currently achleved by Sport Health in its
mamuafacture of Group A Putiy.

1.2  Compensation Advanced - Each month during the
Development Peried, North Cecast shall advance Four
Thousand Dollars ($4,000.00) to Christy on the fifteenth
(15th) day of the month. Nerth Coast shall subtract such
advances from the monies to be paid to Christy Putty
Company as provided in Paragraph 5.2.

3.3 Experipental RBatches -~ North Coast shall
purchase up to ten (10) experimental batches of putty
developed by Christy during the Developnrent Period;
nowever, the total amocunt of putty that WNerth Coast is
regquired to purchacse under thls Paragraph 3.3 shall not
sxoear seven thousand (7,000) pounds {"Maximum Amount"}.
Thne purchase price of each experimental batch shall be, for
each experimental batch of putty produced, the Direct
Coats, as herein defined, of producing the experimental
catch of putty.

For purpeses of this Agreement, "Direct Costs" shall be

the sum of the cost to Christy of raw silicone,

appropriate additives and rental of eguipment or
procurement of services, other than Christy's, for
corpounding raw silicone and additives. The purchase price
of any experimental batch shall not include compensation
for any time spent or expenses, other than those described
hersin, incurred by Christy. The purchase price of any
sxperimental batch shall- be due thirty (30) days after
Horth Coast receives the experimental batch.

2
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If Christy desires tou sell an experimental batch aiter
North Coast has purchased the lesser of ten (10) batches or
the Maximum Amount, then Christy shall provide North Coast
with a written description of the proposed experiment, and
Nerth Coast may, at its sole option, elect to purchase the
experimental batch., Howeveyr, North Coast shall be under no
obligation to purchase any experimental batch after North
Coast has purchased the lesser of ten (10) batches or the
Maximur Amount. All monies received by Horth Coast from
its sale of an experimental batch shall be the sole
property of Horth Coast.

3.4 Additional Expenses -~ North Ceoast shall advance
to Christy monles for additional expenses related to
Christy's development of Group A, Group B and New Putties
which are incurred by Christy during the Development
Period; however, the total amount ©f such expenses shall
not exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00), and their
payment shall be due thirty (30) days after Christy
presents proof te North Ccast that they were incurred.

1,5 Egtablishment of Supplier Entity -~ On or before
Januapyy 1, 1991, ¢hristy shall create and, until the
termination of this Agresment, maintain Christy Futty
Company as an entity the sole purpcse of which shall be to
cbtain Group A, Group B and New Putties and to sell such
putties to North Coast at the price specified in Paragraph
5.1,

A

4. OWHERSHIP oF DEVELGPED PRODUCTS

4.1 HNorth Coast's Ownership Rights -~ Except as
provided in Faragraph 4.2, North Coast shall owp all right,
=itle and interest to the trade secrets, know-how, protess,
design, specifications, formulae and documentation related
to hand therapy putty developed pursuant to this Agreement,
whether developed before, during or after the Development
Period,

christy and/or Christy Putty Company shall provide North
Coast with all formulae for putties developed by Christy or
its affiliates and shall supply North Coast with the nanes
and addresses of all vendors of nmaterials and/or services
ugsed by Christy and/or Christy Putty Company in proeduction
of the putties. At Horth Coast's request, Christy and/or
Christy Putty Company shall introduce a North Coast
representative to such vendors.

4.2 ¢hristvis ownership Rights — Notwithstanding the
verms of Paragraph 4.1, Christy shall own the formula and
technology of a product developed by Christy known as
slastomariac patiy. ”
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4.3 Grant of Exclusive Right to North Coast ~ North
Coast shall, at its cption, have the exclusive right, but
shall net be under any cobligatien, to market, sell and
ctherwise make use of any product containing elastomeric
putty provided that North Ceast agrees to pay te Christy a
royalty in connection with the sale of any such product in
the amount of Twe Dollars {$2.00) per pound of elastomeric
putty used to create such product.

. SUPPLY OF PUTTY

5,1 Supply ss Reguired - Untill North Coast has
purchased one hundred fifty thousand (150,000) pounds of
putty, excluding experimental batches purchased during the
Development Period, from Christy Putty Company ("Supply
Pericd®), Christy Putty Company shall supply Horth Coast
with Greup A, Group B and New Putties in amounts and at
such times as North Ceoast requires. North Coast agrees to
purchase from Christy Group A, Group B and New Putties in
an amount egual to one hundred fifty thousand {150,000}
pounds so long as the price charged by Christy Putty
Company 1s less than the prices charged by Sport Health and
Lepeo as stated in Paragraph 3.1.

5.2 Orders - All orders shall be placed with Christy
rutty Company by North Covast in writing at least thirty
(30} days prior to the required delivery date., Christy
putty Company shall deliver the amounts ordered on or
pefore the regquired delivery date.

5.3 Terns - Except as otherwise agreed to by the
carties, the terms for purchases pursuant to Paragraph 5.1
of this Agreement shall be net thirty (30} days from date
invoilce. Rorth Coast shall pay normal freight charges
ivery to North Coast.

P

For de

&, COMPENSATION TO CHRISTY PUTTY COHMPANY

6.1 Payvment Price - For sach purchase by North Coast
from Christy Putty Company during the Supply Peried, North
Coast shall pay to Christy Putty Company the Payment Price
st defined herein and adjusted in accordance with Paragraph
6.2, melow. "Payment Price" means, for each purchase, the

aum ot

{a} 'The Direct Costs, as that term is defined in
paragraph 3.3, attributable to the putty that North Coast
purchases from Christy Putty Company; and
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{(l} Cne third {1/3) of the Savings, as defined
herein, on North Coast's purchases from Christy Putty
Company.

“Savings! meang, for each purchase made by North Coast and
subject to the adiustments set forth in Paragraph 6.3, the
sum of:

(i} the difference between the product of the
nunber of pounds of Croup A Puitty purchased from Christy
Putty Company times the Sport Health Price and the Direct
Costs of the Group A Putty purchased;

{ii) the difference between the product of the
nunber of pounds of Group B Putty purchased from Christy
putty Company times the Depco Price and the Direct Costs of
the Group B Putity purchased; and

{iii} the difference between the product of the
nurber of pounds of New Putty purchased from Christy Putty
Company times the Sport Health Price and the Diresct (Costs
of the New Putity purchased.

211 payments hereunder shall be made thirty (30} days after
receipt of involce by North Coast.

6.2 Return of Advanges - As a return to North Coast
#¥ the monies advanced to Christy under Parayraph 3.2, the
rayment Price shall be reduced by Twenty-four Cents (§.24)
par pound of putty that North Coast purchases from Christy
Putty Company.

6.3 Adipstments Based on Fluctustions in Price of Raw
silicene - The formula for calculating Savings set forth in
varagraph 6.1 shall be adjusted by adding to or subtracting
from, as set forth herein, the Sport Health Price and the
Depco Price an awount egual to the difference between the
sest to Christy Putty Company of the raw silicene known as
023233 from Dow Corning FOB Midland, Michigan used to
create the putty purchased by North Coast ("Cost of Raw
siitcone”™) and the product ("Base Cost®) of Six Dollars
Thirty-one Cents ($6.31) times the number of pounds of raw
silicone used to ¢reate the putty purchased by North Coast.
If the Cost of Raw Silicone is greater than the Base Cost,
then that difference shall be added to the Sport Health
Price and the Depco Price. If the Cost of Raw Silicone is
le@ss than the Base Cost, then that difference shall be
subtracted from the Sport Health Price and the Depco Price.
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e WARBANTY

Christy and Christy Putty Company warrant that the
Group 4, Group B and New Putties scld to Neorth Coast will
pe free of errors, faulty workmanship and faulty materials
and will be of acceptable quality upon delivery to North
Coast. North Coast shall nctify Christy Putty Company if
any putty does not conform to the provisions of this
warrvanty and shall, if Christy Putty Company so requests,
return such product to Christy Putty Company for
verification of the defect. Upon reasonable verificaticn
of the faillure of such putty to meet the acceptable guality
standard, Christy Putty Company shall elther replace such
defective putty or refund the purchase price of such
defective putty to Narth Coast.

g, OPTION TO PURCHASE SUPPETER ENTITY

As partial consideration for Horth Coast's covenants
and agreements hereurnder, Christy hereby grants to Horth
Coast the option to purcha e Christy Putty Company. The
option price shall be the net book value of Christy Putty
a\mpa%y on the date such Optan first beccmes exercisable.
2hooption shall be exercisable upon North Coast's
purchase of one hundred fifty thousand {150,000) pounds of
putty from Christy and for one (1) year thereafter. 1In
connection with the purchase of Christy Putty Company,
Christy and its principals shall execute a covenant not to
compete in faver of North Ceast similar tc the covenant
contained in Section ¢ of this Agreement. Such covenant
shall last for five (5} vears.

G . CONFIDENTTALITY

During the Term of this Agreepent, each party will be
posed to information concerning the other party's
siness, products, technology, custemers and related
information that is of substantial value to the party
owning it, which value would be impaired if such
information were disglosed to others ("Ceonfidential
information®). Cenfidential Information includes but is
net limited te financial and sales information, design and
process technoleogy, including but not limited to the hand
therapy putty design and all documentation and
specifications. For a period of five (5) years following
the terpination of this Agreement, each party agrees not to
disclose or otherwise make the other party's Confidential
Information available to third parties or to make any use
of such Confidential Information except as sst forth in
this Agreement. Each party further agrees to restrict
access Lo the other party's Confidential Information to

& ey
o fs
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epployess oy ¢onsultants who have a strict need to know in
order to fulfill the provisions of this Agreement and who
have signed confidentiality agreements with thelr employer.
If any party is in doubt as to whether or not certain
infermation is confidential, the other party shall clarify
it upon reguest. EFach party will treat and safeguard any
Confidential Information received from the other, whether
verbal or in writing (provided that it is properly
identified as such), 1n the same nanner as the recelving
party Mafnquardd its own Confidential Information and shall
not disserminate the same without prior written
authorization from the disclosing party, unless the
receiving party can prove and to the extent that it can
DroOvVeE:?

(a)  Such information was in its possession
rrior to the receipt thereof; or

(3 such inforpation lawfully is or becones
guxﬁic knowledge through no breach of this Agreement by
vhe racelving party) or

(¢} Such infermation ls provided without
confidentiality obligation by any arm's length party with a
bona Fide right to do so; or

{(d)  Such infeormation is independently developed
py the receiving party prior te receipt of such
information.

10, COVERANT NOT 10 COMPETE

During the term of this Agreement, Christy or any of

its officers, directers and shareholders shall not
er{ha“e the stock or all of the assets of a business and
will not engage in activity that competes with North Coast
in the hand therapy putty distribution business in the
california counties listed in Exhibit A to this Agreement
at* ched hersto and incorporated herein by this reference,
in any other state of the United States or anywhere else in
tbo world, ﬁotn;ng in this Agreement shall prohibit
Christy or any of its officers, directors and sharenclders
from owning stock or other securities of a competitor in an
amount which ls relatively insubstantial to the total
amount of stock of the competitor, as long as Christy or
any of its officers, directors and sharehclders do not have
the power to control or dirvect the management or policies
ci the coppetitor and are not otherwise associated with any

In 32(‘ 4 Lt:iv .
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11, CTERMINATION OF AGREEMENT OH _DEFAULT

In the event of a default in the terms of this
agresment by either party, thirty (30) days written notice
shail ke given to the defaulting party teo correct the
Azfault, and if not so corrected within the thirty (30) day
period, the nen-defaulting party may elect to terminate
this Agreement by giving written notice of such termination
o tne defaulting party. After such notice is given, this
Agreenmsnt shall terminate, subject only to the non-
defaulting party's right to recover damages for the default
from the defauvlting party.

17,1 Notices -~ A1l notlces, requests, approvals or
other communications provided for herein shall be in
writing and shall be delivered perscnally or by United
srates certified mail directed to the parties at the
addresses set forth helow their names at the foot hereof
ar to such other address as any party may from time to
time designate in writing. Notices or communlcations
sailed as set forth herein shall be concliusively deemed to
nave been received by the party to whom addressed Lhree
Lusiness days after depesit in the United States mail.

12,2 Headings, Number and Gender - ks used hereln,
section and paragraph headings are for convenience of
reference only and shall not be used to construe, limit,
modify, expand or otherwise interpret the terms hereof.
nes used herein, singular nunber shall contain the plural,
ard vice versa, and the masculine gender shall contain the
ipine or neuter, and vice versa, as the context so

12,1 Parties Unable Lo Obligate Gthey - Neither party
ahall have the authority to act for the other in any nannery
co oreate obllgations or debts which would be binding on
the obher party.

12.4 Trademarks and Tradenames - Neither party shall
scguire any rights to the patents, copyrights, trademarks
oy tradenares of the other, except as expressly stated in
this Agreswnent.

~ Heither party grants any license to
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v/

12.6 Governing law - This Agreenment shall be governed
by and construed 1ln accordance with the laws of California.

137 Attornevs! Fees and Costs ~ If any action at law
sy oin equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms
of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled
to reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, and necessary
disburcements in addition to any other relief to which that
warty may ke entitled.

17.8 Entire Agreement - This Agreement contains the
entirve agreement between the parties and supersedes all
prior cral and written agreements, understandings,
comnituments, and practices hetween the parties. Ho party
xay hereafter enter Into any such agreement except by
smerdment heresf in accordance with Paragraph 12.9.

15.9% Amendments ~ This Agreement may be amended at
any time, but any amendnent nust be in writing and signed

3
>y poth parties.

12.10 Ho Walver - The failure of either party to
ineist on strict compliance with any of the terms,
covenants . or conditions of this Agreement by the other
party shall not be deened a waiver of that term, <ovenant,
o condition: nor shall any waiver or relinguishment of any
right or power at any one time or times be deemed a walver
or relinguishment of that right or power for all or any
miher Limes.

2,11 Binding Effect -~ This Agreement shall be
g upon and inure to the benefit of the partieg
seveto, thelr successorsg and asslgns.

17.12 Severability - I oany term, provision, covenant
or copdition of this Agreement 1s held by a court of
compatent jurisdiction to be invalld, void or
smenforceaple, the remainder of this Agreement shall
comain in full force and effect and shall in no way otz
affected, impaired or invalidated.

9
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18 WITHESS WHER

thi martle hersto have caused

this Agreement tTo be eaacutéd as of the date first set

farth hereinabove.

“Christy”

The Christy Company

2108 Raven Road
pleasanton, California

By .

UNorth Coasth?
North Coast HMedical, Inc.

157 stauffer Boulevard
san Jose, California

14
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Alamsda County
Alpine County
amador County
Butte County
Calaveras County
Colusa County
fontra Costa County
Del Norts CTounty
E1l Derado County
Frasno County
Glenn County
Humbeldt County
Imparial County
SNYD dounty

Kern County
Kings County
Lake County
Lassan County
Los angsles County
Madera County
Marin County
Maripesa County
Hondoolino Tounty
Mercea Jounty
Hodoo County
Hono County
Hontaray Count
Hapa County
Nevada County

EXHIBIT A

LAY

Orange County

Placer County

Plunas County
Riverside County
Sacramento County
San Benito County
San Bernardino County
San Diago County

San Francisco County
gan Joaguin County
San Luis Obispo County
San Mateo County
Santa Barkars County
Santa Clara County
Santa Cruz County
Bhasta County

Siarra County
Siskiycu County
Solano County

Sancema Lounty
Stanislaus County
Sutter County

Tghana County
Trinity County
Tulare County
Taolumne Uounty
Ventura County

Yolo County

Yuba County




Case5:12-cv-0&4f6-LHK Documentl FiIedOB/lB/l_ZdPage% of 44

FIRST AMENDMENRT TO
PUTTY DEVELOPHMENT
AMD SUPPLY AGREEMENT

This ¥Flrst amendment {"amendrpent') to Putty

sevelopment and Supply Agreement is entered into on

Fn

August (? 1991, by and between Nerth Coast Medical,

inec., a California corporation, located at

g7 stauffer Bculevard, San Jose, California {“lHorth

Coast'), and Centerline Products, a “;w§KMJ<gf9

RN / il
/fﬁ zwangww«g oo , located at

L -2 a0 N
- /}éQY/\/Zj‘Z/ it e 5 /j/f;tﬂ‘“}*tfu/’!«' ﬁfﬁﬂ ﬁln@") .

Centerline enters inte this Agresment as the assignee

of The Chrilsty Company ("Christy™}.

. Reclitals,

bk

Nerth Ceast and Christy entered

ment and Supply Agrasement

v -
_\/f””’w , 1990. Under

ne Agrecment, Christy agreed to supply North Coast,

\-144\... wh
=3 P S a o T e e o o - o " -y
and North Coasi ayreed o purchase from Christy,

182,000 pounds of hand therapy putty in various

MRS

e

semant get forth the terms ang

a
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1.2 Centerline. Sirce entering into the

Loveenment, Christy has assigned his rights in the

ine,  Centerline wishes to assune

formally Christy’'s obligations under the Agreenent.

1.3 Intent of Parties. HNorth Coast, Christy and

Certeriine wish te ratify the Putty Development and

rereement and to swxtend the term of the

th Coast purchases a total of

00 pounds of putty under the Agreenent. The
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conseiting activities between then.

nteriine. The parties
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Ratification by

nerelby acknowledge and agree that Centerline shall be
gntitled to all the benefits and subject to all the
chligations of Christy under the Agreement. The
soknowledge that Christy shall not

ite ckligations under the Agreement,

actually performed by Centerline.
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4. Consultirg Arrangenents. During the term of

any consulting agreement in effect between Centerline
41 horth Coast, neither Centerlime nor any of its
principals shall purchase the stock or all of the
ansots of a business, or otherwise engage in activity
that competes with North Coast in any market in which
Noreth Coast conducts business in the California

counties listed in Exhibit A to the Agreement, in any

‘ate of the United States, or anywhere else in

from owning stock or other securities of a competitor
¥ North Coast in oan amount which is relatively

v othe total apount of stock of the

an long as Centeriine or any of 1ts

competitor, 1
crincipals do not have the power to contrel or direct
v anagemsnt or policies of the competitor and are
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Armarncdment to be exeouted
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Second Amendment 10
Putty Davelopment and Supply Agresment

This Sscond Amendment (Amendment) to Putty Develepment and Supply
agresment is entered into on August 15, 1994 by and between North Coast
Medical, ine., a California corporation located at 187 Stauffer Beulevard, San
Jose, CA ("North Coast”) and the Christy Putty Compary, 1258-G Quarry Lane,
Suite 3, Pleasanton, CA {"Christy").

1. Hacuals

1.1 Centerling. All references to Centerling from the First Amendment to
Puity Development and Supply Agreement dated August g, 1991 ("First
Amendment”) are null and void. Chiisty hereby represents and warrants to North
Coast tnal Centerline owns no interest in the Agreement or the First Amendment
and that no amounts are due 1o Centerline pursuant to the Agreement or First
Amendment. Christy agrees to indemnify, defend and hold North Coast harmiess
from ary and all claims, losses and damages which may be asserted by
Centerling or its sUCCessors or assigns (other than Christy) against North Coast
with respect 1o matters arising under the Agresment, First Amendment or this
Second Amendment.

1.2 Intentof Paries. North Coast and Christy wish to ratify the Putty
Devalopment and Supply Agreement and 1o extend the term of the Agreement
uniil North Coast purchases a total of 400,000 pounds of putty per the
Agreement. The parties also wish 1o acknowledge other ongoing consuiting
activities between them,

5 Exiension of Term

Wrenaver the figure "250,000° appears in the Agreement as modified by the
First Amendment, i shall be changed to "400,000" to implement the intent of the
parties as stated in Section 1.3 of the Agreement.

3. Consulting Arrangements.

During the term of any consulting agreemant in effect between Christy and
Mot Coast, neithar Chiristy nor any of its principals shall purchase the stock or
s of the assets of a business, or otherwise engage in activity that competes with
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north Coast in any market in which North Coast conducts business irn California,
in any oihar state of the Uniled States, or anywhere else in the world. Nothing in
the Agreement or this Amendment shall prohibit Christy or any of 1s principals
teom owning stock or other securities of a competitor of North Coast in an amount
which i¢ relatvely insubsianiial to the total amount of steck of the competitor,
Provided that neither Christy nor any of its principals do not have the power o
control or direct the management or policies of the competitor and are not

therwise associated with any competitor,

4. Royalties.

Crrnisty nas the non-exclusive right 1o seil North Coast pulty formulas into
retall ;wmct marketls gther than the med: Caf market and health and salety
market as defined under Definitions (Part 5 of this agreement).

Any such sales will include a ten percent (10%) royeity 10 North Coast.
Cradit for sales will be bulk based. Christy may then package and resell the putty
st its discretinn, The bulk based rate will be at current costs to North Coast at the
e of ihe sale.

Termination of this right to market North Coast formulas requires a thirty-six
L6 montn written notice. This notice can extand bayond the supply contract

tarminaton dale.

& Bglintions.

51 Medical Marke!. The Medical Market shall mean professionals with
Heanses or cartitication to work in the medical profession and anyone who sells to
hem suoh as dealers, distributors ard reselfers, This market is the exclusive
markat of North Coast and inciudes but is not limited to:

Licensad Occupational Therapists

Certified Hand Therapists

Certified Oceupaticnal Therapist Assistants
Physical Therapists

Physical Therapist Assistants

Orihopadic Surgeons

Orhopedic Nursas

Licensed Medical Doctors

Home Care Providers

e
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505 Health and Safety Market. The Health and Safety Market shall maan
professionals who work in the Health and Safety industry and anyone who selis
i tham such as dealars, distributors and resallers. This market is the exclusive
markel of North Coast and includes butis not fimited to:

Industrial Hygienists

Occupetional Health Nurses

Safety Engineers

Risk Managers

Ergonomic Engireers (Human Factors)

6. Centinuing Efectiveness of Agreement.
Except as modified by this Amendment, the Agreement and First
Amendment shall remain in full force and effect among the parties.

INWITRESS WHEREQF, tha parties have caused this Amendment 10 be
exoouted as of the date first set forth above.

NORTH COAST MEDICAL, INC.

W0 A
1204 o

v g

/"
-

Y e /
d ’//’/ /." f/: fg’ff;:,’%{7 K/76 A %;/
.ﬁ%; v /"/

rd



Caseb:12-cv-01246-LHK Documentl Filed03/13/12 Page43 of 44

EXHIBIT B
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tMarch 17, 1897

oty Casast ‘
Mike Christy
Chrigty Company
La.Cr Qluarry Lane

h. CA 94506

Dear Mike:

i wanted to contast you to confirm the understanding between our two companies
regarding the Semmses Weinstein Monofilaments. North Coast Medical, Inc. (NCM)
rransterred proprietary manufacturing information, :na%erials and -sugphef contacts 1o
Christy Company in exchange tor Christy Company becoming NCM's sole
rranufacturer of the North Coast™ Semmes Weinstein Monofilamenis. In addition, a
jcint devetopment project hatween NCM and the Christy Company to design & new
retractable version for the North Coast Monofilaments was initiated and eventually
completed. 1t was understood that in exchange for NCM's gaﬂicipatioé in ﬂ':iiS _}oin‘t
devetopment project NCM would continue to be the exclusive worldwide distributor of
ine new Moncfilaments design. As well. it was understood that Christy Company
would nontinue to be NCM's exclusive manufacturer for the Monoiilaments.
curthermore, it was mutually agreed upen Christy Company would pursue patent
crotection on the new design and that NCM would have the option to purchase the
zssignment on any natent issued.

The recen: depariure of a certain NCM employee and the subsequent reported
behavior has prompted me to document our understanding in writing. | would not want
anything such as a misunderstanding or the apparem_ misguided actigns of aeformer
NCM empioyee (o come between our mutually beneficiai and exclusive relationship.

ook forward to sharing our marketing plan and seiling strategies for the Semmes
Weinstein Monofilaments with yeu. | am confident you wilt be both pleased and
mpressed with our strategic plan to make our North Coast™ Semmes Weinstein
Vonotilaments the sensory evaluation tool of choice for medical practitioners
worldwide.
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